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CHAIR CARROLL: ... (gavel) . .. The Land Use Committee of November 2,2005, is now in
session. Good afternoon, Members.
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Good afternoon, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: And we have with us this morning [sic}, Members Anderson, Johnson,
Kane ... (laughter). .. Molina; and excused are ... Tavares, Pontanilla, Mateo, and
Hokama. This afternoon we have three items on our agenda. And to the audience and
Members, reminder--please, cell phone and pagers, put them on the silent or tum them
off. And public testimony, when I, will be offered. I'm going to allow public testimony
on any item at the beginning of the meeting, but people have a choice. They can wait
until afterwards when their item comes up to give testimony, one or the other.
Our first item on the agenda, Land Use Item 15, District Boundary Amendment and
Change in Zoning for Kihei Seventh Day Adventist Church.
ITEM NO. 15:

DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING
FOR KIHEI SEVENTH DAY ADVENTIST CHURCH (C.c. No. 05-234)

CHAIR CARROLL: The Committee is in receipt of the following: County Communication
No. 05-234, from the Planning Director transmitting a proposed Change in zoning bill
and proposed District Boundary Amendment entitled: a bill for an ordinance to amend
the State Land Use District Classification from Agricultural to Urban for property
situated at Kihei, Maui, Hawaii. The purpose of the proposed District Boundary
Amendment bill is to grant a request from Austin Swartz, on behalf of Kihei Seventh Day
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Adventist Church, for a District Boundary Amendment from Agricultural District to
Urban District to construct and operate a church and preschool on 5.773 acres in Kihei,
Maui.
And by correspondence dated October IO t \ 2005, from the Department of Corporation
Counsel transmitting a revised proposed bill entitled: a bill from an ord ... a bill for an
ordinance to Change Zoning from Agricultural District to OS dash 2 Open Space District
and A-I Apartment District for property situated at Kihei, Maui, Hawaii. The purpose of
the revised proposed bill is to grant a request from Austin Swartz, on behalf of the Kihei
Seventh Day Adventists Church for a Change in Zoning from Agricultural District to
OS-2 Open Space District (1.433 acres) and A-I Apartment District (4.340 acres) to
construct and operate a church and preschool in Kihei, Maui.
We will first hear from the Applicant, then the Department, then we will be opening
public testimony. Ifthe Applicant or the representative could come forward?
MR. SW ARTZ: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and Council Members. My name is
Austin Swartz, and I'm the Head Elder of the Kihei Seventh Day Adventist Church, and
also I'm the project coordinator between the church, and the engineering, and the
architectural work that's being done.
I just want to take a minute to mention just a couple of the reasons that we are in need of
building this church. First of all, we've been having our services in various public
locations for 15 years now, and we really think it's time for us to have our own building.
Aside from that though there's some community benefits that I want to mention.
The first, is that we're planning on having a preschool as you mentioned and obviously
we'll be generating income from the preschool to pay for, help pay for our various needs,
but the, the community of Kihei is growing so fast that it's our opinion that preschool
requirements will keep increasing and increasing, so there will be a preschool available
for these people in Kihei to drop their children off right in the neighborhood instead of
having to take them to Kahului or Wailuku or some other location.
Secondly, our church is very interested in community outreach, and we simply can't
feasibly do these outreach programs from public facilities all the time such as cooking
schools and other health related topics. We have community, we have bible study
courses and discussions that are open to the community, and we have various other
community related functions that come up from time to time.
So, these are some of the benefits to the community of Kihei, and also there's some of the
benefits to the rest of the Island as well. I'd like to introduce now our architect,
August Percha who will give you the technical details of the project.
... (Pause). ..
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MR. PERCHA: Good afternoon, Chair, Members of the Council. I'm August Percha. I'm the
project architect, and I'm assisting the church with their land use applications. Last
month I made available to the Staff, and I think that they did pass out for your packets a
few items that would assist me in explaining our project here today.
The 5.77 acres is a remnant parcel, the larger agricultural parcel that-CHAIR CARROLL: Excuse me, you have to use the microphone.
MR. PERCHA: --extended way mauka across Piilani Highway. When Piilani Highway was
constructed this remnant parcel was severed, and it has for all this time remained in
agriculture.
So, now in the Community Plan it's designated as Open Space, which is typically the
brown area at the top ofthe site and multi-family, which is the area where the church is to
be built where the blue roof structure is. That more or less covers our zoning.
Some other attributes on the site are flood hazards greatly reduces the amount of area that
can be built on, and then there's a waterline transmission easement. That's a high,
high-pressure waterline that carries water from Central Maui to South Maui. This is an
in-fill project. The design reviews that we've had with KCA Community Association, I
personally met with the ten property owners just to the bottom of the site right there, and
we made adjustments in our site planning relating to their suggestions.
One, was to put a privacy gate at the entrance of our driveway so that park, people
parking wouldn't, or people wouldn't be susceptible to coming in, and parking, and
loitering at night.
There's a secondary impact to this project, and in the photos that I passed out, those
would be photos number five and six, they show that roadway. Currently it's barricaded
at the Kulanihakoi, Kulanihakoi Road. The proposal is to move that barricade north
towards that position and utilize that short length of existing Uiloa Drive as essentially a
flag lot driveway for the time being.
Also, in your packets I included a use matrix, which should identify each and every day
for you what the amount of people coming and going is going to be on the site. Our
traffic study was based on that use matrix, and it's important to say that the development
is planned to be phased. Most of the use comes on Saturday when it's at its use, highest
use, and probably five to ten years from now they're expecting 100 people at the, in the
congregation. And that concludes my presentation.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you very much. We'd now like to hear from the Department.
Mr. Yoshida.
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MR. YOSHIDA: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Committee Members. Clayton Yoshida,
Planning Program Administrator, Current Planning Division, Planning Department,
subbing for Colleen Suyama, Staff Planner, who is attending the Statewide Planning
Conference on Kauai.
On June 28 th of this year, the Maui Planning Commission held a public hearing on these
applications together with the applications for a County special use permit and the, and
special management area use permit. No one testified at the public hearing, and no
written testimony was received.
The Planning Commission after due deliberation recommended approval of the District
Boundary Amendment and the Change in Zoning in accordance with the Department's
recommendation with no conditions. They also deferred action on the County special use
permit and the special management area use permit until the Council has taken action on
these requests.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. We'd now like to open public testimony. Public testimony is
now open. When your name is called please come to the podium. You have three
minutes. At three minutes you'll be notified, and you have one minute to conclude.
When you do reach the podium please repeat your name for the record. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier is Eleanor Bell, to be followed by Diane Higashi .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. BELL: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and Council Members. You know, this is my
second time to be in this building of, what, eighth floor? The first time that I was here
was to help celebrate Aunty Olive's, you know, that proclamation that the testimonies
was given for her. Wow, terrific. I am so proud to be here. I have also been in very few
of your meetings, not here, but on TV, and I appreciate all the work that you folks have
done.
But my concern here, oh, my name is Eleanor Bell, and I live up in Pukalani, and I come
to church here in Kihei. We've been here for, oh, over ten years I believe. I'm not sure,
but more than ten years, and I wasn't there at the beginning, but I was there, I, I'm
considered one of the charter members anyway, because I've been there one of the
longest anyhow.
My concern is about our Land Use 15 District Boundary Amendment and Change in
Zoning for Kihei Seventh Day Adventist Church. If you will see where we're situated I
believe that each and everyone of you know where we're at. And if you look all around
it's all residential area, and if you see across of the road, I don't know what's going to
become of it, but we're right there on, I, I think they say it's a Collector's Road. And I
read in the newspaper that, I like the idea about the walkway going all the way down to
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Makena, Wailea. Wow, terrific. I, I really am for it, but, you know, Kihei, like Austin
says it's bursting at the seam.
The population has grown so much that I believe a, a church and a preschool will benefit
the community, and that's what we're there for. We're really an outreach church, and
that preschool I know our leader who had already been there in our preschool and other
preschools. She's ready and willing to get this going, and I believe that it has been
approved somehow by the community thinking that there is so much of a need for a
preschool. And what better than to have a church and a preschool.
And look at all the community there that we could be of benefit to them not only to
witness, but then also to help give them these benefits that will be provided for them in
the near future. Hopefully, it will be real soon. I believe I have just a few minutes.
Anyway, I really want to thank all of you that this is now before you, and I, I'm not too
sure about all this different things that takes place in, in a meeting like this, but maybe
this is the first step that we're here to get things going. We already have the land, and
now we only need is to build the, the church and a preschool.
So, with your mana'o, your knowledge-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. BELL: --and your good decision that you work. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Diane Higashi, to be followed by Olive Silva.
MS. HIGASHI: Good, good afternoon, Chairman and Council Members. Thank you for coming,
and I just want to say that I'm anxious to see our church and our school go up, so, if we
can do something to make it sooner. And I've lived in Kihei for more than 50 years, and
now it's so full of people, cars and everything else. Not like before. And so, we should
be more careful, I think, with everything else. I thank you all for listening to this
unhappy person. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? If not, thank you very much.
Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Olive Silva, to be followed by Austin Swartz.
MS. SILVA: Aloha oi na laC?)·
UNIDENTIFIED COUNCILMEMBER: Aloha.

-6-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

November 2, 2005

MS. SILVA: Mr. Chairman Bob Carroll and all the Members of the Land Use Committee, my
name is Aunty Olive Silva. You know, at one time, not one time, but in the Aikido my
boss Suzuki Zen say, whew, we're getting into our age. We don't remember what we're
supposed to say first and what we're going to say next, and et cetera. So, we, we take our
piece of paper and note, and we read it to the people. So, here it is.
Aloha, Members of the Land Use and Committee, my name is Aunty Olive Silva, and I
would like to support this Seventh Day Adventist Church request for a District Boundary
Amendment and Zoning Change for a preschool. Our church members have increased,
and many of our members are working parents who need a good place for their children
to learn and to be supervised.
I know all of you will work hard at what you do and have the knowledge to make the
right decision. Now, I want to thank you for hearing my testimony and ask you to keep
up the good work in not only reaching out to what I'm asking, but to all other people who
need help. Aloha maio God bless you all.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next and last testifier who has signed up is Austin Swartz.
MR. SWARTZ: Just one thing I wanted to clarify that hasn't been mentioned so far. My name
is Austin Swartz. I spoke a little while ago. The question has been raised from time to
time as to why are we applying for the type of zoning that we're applying for, which is
multi-family instead of public-quasi-public. And the reason for that is that the Kihei
Community Plan calls for that area to be zoned multi-family, and in the regulations that I
read of some time ago it says that the, the building of a church and a preschool would be
acceptable special use in a multi-family setting. So, in case somebody is wondering why
we aren't going with public-quasi that's the reason. That's all I have to say for now.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I really appreciate your testimony and also the reasoning
behind why you're doing this. The, the one, I guess the question that I would have is
because public-quasi-public would fit where you would not have to come back repeatedly
for special use permit was there anything that the Planning Department or your consultant
recommended as to why you should go that route rather than go the other way?
MR. SWARTZ: Well, I can't remember where we heard this information, but basically we were
told that if we tried to have it rezoned for something that's contrary to the specification in
the Kihei Community Plan that it would be much more difficulty, much more difficult to
obtain that zoning than it would be if we just went along with the one that is already in
the Kihei Community Plan. So, that is the main reason that we are asking for multifamily instead of public-quasi-public.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. SWARTZ: Uh-huh.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson, did you have your hand up? Oh, I'm sorry. Any further
questions for the testifier? If not, thank you very much.
MR. SWARTZ: Uh-huh.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, no one else has signed up to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone in the gallery who wishes to testify on this Item? Please
come forward. After your testimony then you can come to the counter and sign up.
MR. NELSON: Good afternoon, Chairperson Carroll and Committee. My name is Tim Nelson,
and I am the pastor of the Kihei church as well as the Lahaina Seventh Day Adventist
Church. I am here today just to implore you to, ask this. We are, we are wanting, like
any other group of people, to worship in a place where we can call our own. On top of
that, we are eager to start our community service projects. Projects that are encumbered
by the lack of a permanent structure or lack of a permanent location.
For example, in Lahaina we're able to do food banks and broker(?) society, which is a
passing out of clothing for those who are in need. It's hard to do that when we don't have
a place to store it, or a central place for people to come and pick-up the items. We also
do a health and blood pressure screening from, every week. Again, hard to do when we
don't have a central place.
So, we're looking for the community to allow us to continue here in the process that
we've started in starting a church facility here in Kihei. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MR. NELSON: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone else who wishes to give testimony on this agenda item?
Please come forward.
MS. OKUDA: Good afternoon. I'm Marsha Okuda, and I just wanted to say that I have been
part of the Kihei Seventh Day Adventist Church since about 1992, I believe was when I
was actually baptized. And in the years from 1992, we've been at the Old Kihei
Community Complex. We've been at a little small church on Kihei Road. We've had to
meet on the beach. We've met in homes. And we had the fortunate ability to be at
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Kamalii for the past, I believe, about seven years, I believe somewhere, but I know it's
been more than five, and I know that they would appreciate us having a home so that they
can use their cafeteria for other things on Saturdays.
And we would just love to have our own home. As you heard pastor Tim testify that it's
difficult to have outreaches and anything other than our Saturday get together when you
don't have a place to meet. And it would be nice. We could have so many outreaches in
Kihei if we had a building and a place where people could come. And, and so, I'm very
excited about this and hope that all you folks will give us favor and allow us to build our
building. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Is
there anyone else who wishes to give testimony on this agenda item? Is there anyone
who wishes to give testimony on other, any other agenda item that cannot wait until that
item comes up? You may come forward now. If not, we will be offering testimony
before the other two items. Seeing none, if there is no objection we will close testimony
on this agenda item.
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Testimony is now closed.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR CARROLL:
Members, I now op. . ., and we have with us this afternoon
Mr. Clayton Yoshida, Department of Planning; Michael Miyamoto, Deputy Director of
Public Works and Environmental Management; and our Corporation Counsel
Brian Moto; also, Charlene Shibuya, Assistant District Engineer, Maui District Highways
Divisions, State DOT. I will now open the floor to questions. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. If I could ask, I
guess, someone from Public Works, the Director, I guess, Mr. Miyamoto.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto, could you please come down?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I don't know if my questions also might be applicable as well
as to the Applicant, I guess, Mr. Percha, if he could be available as well. My question,
Mr. Chairman, relates to the proposal for a retention pond. I guess, where will the release
ofthe water of, the pond occur, because I know the project is near flood, is not within the
flood zones, but I guess there are a couple of flood zones nearby, and who will be
responsible for the maintenance ofthe retention pond, and what, if any, potential impacts
will occur when there is, I guess, heavy rains to the property owners down the road, I
guess?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto.
-9-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

November 2, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And maybe Mr. Percha or Mr. Miyamoto want to take a stab
at it first.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Well, Mr. Miyamoto is looking at the Applicant. You heard the
question. Are you prepared to answer?
MR. PERCHA: Yes, I'm August Percha. I'm the project architect. They are surface retention
ponds. There is an east retention pond and a west retention pond. Each are shallow
retentions in the Earth. The post development runoff for our project involves about
18,000 cubic feet of runoff. The combined total of the east and west retention pond is
33,000 cubic feet. So, we have a good safety margin for water retention before it's
eventually released into, into the flood zone.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and have you engaged in any discussions with Public
Works as far as the pond being converted into a park that could be, eventually be
dedicated to the County? Has that been discussed at this point-MR. PERCHA: No, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- or in the future? Okay, and I know you mentioned earlier
that you've got your issues resolved, I guess, with the ten property owners nearby.
MR. PERCHA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
flooding issues and ...

I, I, I presume you folks discussed any potential flood,

MR. PERCHA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. PERCHA: Flooding for them as it occurs to our project is not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. PERCHA: They slope away from one another.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Not a question for the developer, but a
question for Public Works. Liloa Drive at Kulanihakoi gulch is, is there a culvert
crossing that road? Is the road there, first of all?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO: The current status of Liloa Drive is basically it, it pretty much ends about
this property. There's no crossing of Kulanihakoi gulch at these points. That's a
segment ofthis North-South Collector that's going to be, that's in design.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, it is a proposal when the road goes through then?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, it is.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I guess Member Anderson had her hand up. I, I'll yield to
Member Anderson.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Thank you, Chair.
Thank you, Mr. Molina.
Mr. Miyamoto, could you give me some idea on how you have integrated the design for
the North-South Collector Road with this project, and specifically the greenway bikeway
portion?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, the existing roadway is pretty much built on the mauka side of
the, that, that North-South Collector Corridor, which is pretty consistent with the other
portions that's between here and Lipoa, which puts the, the bike path/greenway that
Joe Bertram so strongly wants to see on the makai side available. Space is available on
the makai side for that facility.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, that's where you will be planning it?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes. The design of it, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Great. And I'm assuming that the retention basins
he was speaking of would be in the Open Space area, or is it going to be in the, so, it'll be
in the multi-family or other? And, and that is the size to take overflow from the flood
area, or, or is it to retain water from the site, from going into the gulch?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto.

- 11 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

November 2, 2005

MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, I guess given the statement that just was, that was just made by
their architect, I mean their, their calculations show they need to handle 18,000 cubic feet
whereas the two facilities total, I think he said 33,000, if I'm not mistaken, which is more
than they need to control.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I have a question for Planning, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I know this isn't your project, Clayton, so what I'm trying
to find is where, where the Community Plan, I want to see the surrounding areas. I mean
there's maps here, but they don't really indicate, oh, here we go. Here's the Community
Plan... (pause) . ..
MR. YOSHIDA: Mr. Chairman, Council. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The, the comm. .. (laughter) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: I think we have your answer. Planning
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I haven't asked him the question yet, sir. I did find
the map, thank you very much. You know, if they, if they wanted to change the
Community Plan from multi-family to pUblic-quasi-public it would be a great expense to
them, because they'd have to do an environmental assessment.
So, my question for you is under multi-family zoning it allows all permitted uses in the
residential district. And within the residential district they, they can have schools. And is
the Department's... (change tape, end side IA). .. interpretation of a school not a
preschool? Does that not include a preschool?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Mr. Chairman, Councilmember Anderson, I believe that under Chapter 19.08,
preschools are listed as a special use in the residential district.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I'm looking at it right now, Clayton and, you know,
there's a problem, because it says that schools, day cares, nurseries, kindergartens,
nursery schools, child cares, day care homes, day care centers, nursery schools,
preschool, kindergartens, babysitting and other like facilities located in private homes
could be a special use permit, but this is not located in a private home. This is located in
a church, and it looks the way the drawings are that the preschool will be part of the main
building.
So, and so, they're going to have to get a special use permit for the church. And I'm just
wondering if under permitted uses, are you there now in the Code, Clayton, under "D"?
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I'm just wondering if the school could be con... , considered a permit use under that
category.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Mr. Chairman, Councilmember Anderson, we feel that, well if, because they
would be serving more than eight children, well, one, the church is listed as a special use
in the residential district; and two, because they would serving more than eight children
the preschool would also be a special use in the residential district.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I was wanting you to look at, at Item "D", not "H",
Mr. Yoshida. So, there, there's no restriction it's just, you know, a permitted use for
schools.
CHAIR CARROLL: You have any further questions, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm asking him right now if he would look at Item "D" and
see if that could be considered a permitted use for the school that they're doing, so that
they don't need to include that as a special use, that just the church. Because if you want
to read the law as it, you know, as it says the special use is only for day care, nurseries,
kindergartens, and such that are located in private homes.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA; Yes, Mr. Chairman, Councilmember Anderson, I believe that it goes on further
to say that for specific lot sizes there is a maximum number of children that could be on,
could be, would be in the preschool operation such as if the lot were less than 7,500
square feet there would be-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Where are you reading, Mr. Yoshida? Can you cite that?
MR. YOSHIDA: --beyond the ... (inaudible) .. .I believe that the number of children that the
church plans to serve is more than 12.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you tell me where you're, what you're citing,
Clayton? Are you reading from the Residential District?
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so what, what are you reading from, 'cause ...
MR. YOSHIDA: I believe the second sentence says these facilities shall serve six or fewer
children at any time on lot sizes ...
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, you're reading Item "H", as a permitted use, and it's
also required that six or fewer children can, and it's a permitted use in a private home.
The special use is for more than six children still in a private home. What I'm drawing
your attention to, Clayton, is Item "D", under permitted uses. Schools are permitted.
And I'm wondering why you cannot use that as a permitted use, because they don't fit the
special use category, because it's not in a private home?
MR. YOSHIDA: Well, I believe in talking about schools they're talking about elementary,
intermediate, high, and colleges. They're not talking about preschools.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I was hoping you could make that interpretation,
because it just says schools, and then it goes on. I don't think it excludes particularly,
where it does exclude, it restricts the use of a special use for a preschool unless it's in a
private home, but. ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, that's, Ms. Anderson, that is the Department's interpretation, so ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? I believe, did you have something, Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr., Member Carroll. I, I saw Ms. Shibuya
from the State DOT in the gallery-CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --and I was wondering if I could ask her a question relating to
traffic?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Shibuya, could you please come down?
MS. SHIBUY A: Good afternoon, Chair and Members, and Councilmember Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good, good afternoon, Ms. Shibuya.
MS. SHIBUYA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I, I couldn't help but noticing you, and I know you're always
such a good resource in the State DOT. I had a question which, which relates to the, I
guess looking at the traffic impact analysis there was a recommendation made to restrict
the left turns onto Piilani from Kulanihakoi Street. I presume this matter has been
discussed with the community and can you comment on that? And I know there were
previous attempts before, I can't recall specifically what project, to restrict the left turns
and there was some concerns expressed by the community. Since that time up until now
what has transpired with regards to this?
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MS. SHIBUY A: Actually, you know, long time ago when the Kihei Traffic Master Plan was, I
guess, first developed that was, like, in the late' 80s-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MS. SHIBUYA: --you know, this was always part of the Kihei Traffic Master Plan, but, you
know, as usual, nobody really notices until somebody starts to implement. And during
the Piilani interim widening because, you know, that was an opportunity to actually
implement some of the restrictions. I, I believe, I'm trying to recall, because I just kind
of went from the County to the State at that time, but I think we did one, one or two
intersections and then, of course, the community had some problems, because simply the
North-South Collector segments weren't in, and it kind of restricted them from using
certain routes, you know.
So, what we did was we, we relaxed the restrictions and, like, for example, for
specifically at Kulanihakoi we didn't implement the restrictions. And what, what's
happening now is actually functioning, because we have a so-called, like a, we call it a
refuge lane where you can cross over the Wailea bound lanes, and then you can sort of,
like, rest in the middle, and then merge into the Maalaea bound lanes.
So, it, it's functioning although, you know, your strict analysis will show that the level of
service is poor, you know, for that left-tum movement. So, that's what's happening now.
And so, essentially what we've gone on record to say is that if, if certain, you know, the
remaining segments of the North-South Collector doesn't go in and the level of service
further deteriorates then we, we may have to seriously look at it, but at this time we see
the intersection functioning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, it is at an acceptable level of service, I guess, at this point?
MS. SHIBUYA: Yeah. Yeah, it, it's functioning, you know, even if the, the study will say its
level of service, you know, "DNF".
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, I, I'm just, I guess asking for your comments. Would it
be, being that it's imminent that ,the way the Kihei Community is growing, would it be, I
guess feasible to actually start putting in a lane now for our, I'm sorry, maybe an
additional left tum lane? This is from Kulanihakoi that a left tum lane be provided
instead of waiting for traffic to get worse.
MS. SHIBUYA: Well, actually the, the, you're talking about the refuge-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Kulanihakoi.
MS. SHIBUYA: --the refuge excel lane too?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
MS. SHIBUYA: Actually, it's, it's in there already-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay.
MS. SHIBUYA: --for Kulanihakoi.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. SHIBUY A: And, and what was supposed to happen, we were supposed to actually be
putting in these islands to restrict it to right turns in-right turns out only and left turns in,
but we actually deferred that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. Okay. Thank you for that clarification. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Any further questions from the Members before
the Chair gives his recommendation? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Hello, Charlene, how are you? I wanted to find out in regard
to any kind of exemptions or impact fees, is the State going to be looking at any
participation in any of the areas of improvements?
MS. SHIBUYA: Well, I, I believe the State is still looking at it, and I know the County had
something recent, and it was kind of deferred, because I, I know we didn't go on record
on this particular letter, but, you know, essentially, I think both the State and County is
concerned about the so-called cumulative impacts-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. SHIBUY A: --because, you know, these small developments alone, you know, we cannot
require them to put in improvements that will benefit, you know, everybody else. And
so, we're concerned too, but at, at this time, you know, I cannot say that the State has a
so-called formula or, you know, like an equation to, to figure out the impact fees.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and that, that's my only concern is that I know we
had another proposal Upcountry too, and because we haven't firmed up the language I
was just concerned, you know.
MS. SHIBUYA: Yeah, I, I know for South Maui and West Maui, I, I, know there was like an
ordinance done, I think it was in the early '90s and, you know, it, it's been tossed around,
but I know it, it's a complicated matter-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
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MS. SHIBUYA: --and, you know, it, it's been going through the process.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, the, the only reason I ask is just because I wanted to
know if there was any participation, or if there were any improvements that were needed
on Piilani that would be specifically related to this development, so there would be a
rationale nexus that they were going to be participating in.
MS. SHIBUYA: Well, it was very difficult, because if you see in our, you know, comment that
their actual contribution to this left turns are so small-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. SHIBUY A: --that it, it, you know, you really cannot find a, a rationale nexus to say, for
example, put in signals, or, you know, something to that effect.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. No, no, and, and I understand that, because they have
a low usage, you know, and it's only at certain times.
MS. SHIBUYA: Yeah, and, and so for us it's, you know, just, just that the surrounding
community understands that, you know, when the levels of service do deteriorate and if
certain seg .. "' segments of the North-South is not in then, you know, we may have to go
through more drastic measures, but at, at this time we feel it's functioning.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much, Charlene.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Anything further before the Chair gives his
recommendation? Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you, Chair.
Transportation, but, again, Public Works.

It's not for the Department of

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Shibuya.
MS. SHIBUY A: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: In regards to the County gray-water line, the recycled water,
will it come across this particular project?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I know there's one being proposed, but. ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto.
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MR. MIYAMOTO: Currently, the reo .. , the reclaimed waterline that, that's existing is right
along the, where the current bike path is being constructed-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. MIYAMOTO: --up until Waipuilani. We've designed it so that we, we're going to put a
"T" at that location should there be a need, demand that we can extend it further along the
North-South Collector--whether it be to provide irrigation for development or maybe,
maybe for the greenway along the North-South Collector.
We've allowed, we've made that provision, but currently it does not extend beyond
Waipuilani Road along the North-South Collector.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr., you have anything further, Mr. Pontanilla? Mr. Kane,
followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And thank you, Chair, and, and I apologize I had to step out for a
few moments, and I don't know if this question was asked. And so, I'll ask and whoever,
and it's probably from the Applicant themselves regarding the preschool. And I know
the gentleman who came up and spoke first, the Elder, maybe he could be the person to
respond, because I, I, I extracted out the question from some comments that he made in
his opening remarks. So, if I may ask him a question? Elder, good afternoon. Thank
you.
MR. SWARTZ: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: You've made some comments regarding the preschool itself, and
so my question was, is the preschool going to be just for the congregation's members, or
is it going to be open to the public?
MR. SWARTZ: It's open to the public. It's designed to have 36 children, and the square
footage per child I can't remember the exact number, but the size of the preschool room,
which...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just ballpark, sir.
MR. SWARTZ: Anyway the size of the preschool room is considerably larger than the min ... ,
minimum square footage requirement per student. So, we have ample facilities for 36,
and probably there would only be half a dozen or so from our own congregation. The
rest would be from the community.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you very much for your response, sir.
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MR. SWARTZ: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. If I could ask a question of the architect?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
property?

Could you tell us if there will be mass grading of the

MR. PERCHA: The project area is 5.773 acres. The area of our project site that will be
impacted with grading will be about 2 acres, 2.3 acres, and massive grading no more than
four feet in depth at the deepest location, and I'll point that out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sure.
MR. PERCHA: The idea is to retain the embankment that I depict in my photos number one and
two along the highway as well as a 15 foot buffer between the proposed parking area, and
their backyard thereby retaining their existing yard fence, and their existing landscaping
and other things that are in the proximity.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, it doesn't, like, it doesn't look like you have any blue
rock to deal with?
MR. PERCHA: Well, we're not sure exactly what lies under the blue rock, blue rock that's on
the surface. We're hoping it's more of those same size chunks.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, would you be excavating? Say there's blue rock under
there, are you going to be excavating a large area, or just, when you said four feet. ..
MR. PERCHA: Yes, if we encounter blue rock in excavation we're going to alter our plans
some so that we don't have to blast. That wouldn't be in the community interest, and we
don't want to do that. So, we would alter our plan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm very happy to hear you say that. I am extremely happy
to hear you say that, and I, I wish other people would follow your example. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Anything further before the Chair gives his
recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Recommendation.
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CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair will entertain a motion to pass the proposed bill entitled: a bill
for an ordinance to amend the State Land Use District Classification from Agricultural to
Urban for property situated at Kihei, Maui, Hawaii.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Molina. Discussion?
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I, I think this action that we're taking this
afternoon would finally provide a home for the church members that have come up and
testified before us, and, and I am happy to, to support this project.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I'm very happy to support this project
especially since they are demonstrating that they're going to be conscientious to their
neighbors and build with aloha. I can't tell you how many phone calls I've gotten from
people who don't follow that precept and disturb their neighbors for months on end. So,
thank you very much for that.
And I, I also am appreciative of the fact that they're opening their preschool to
everybody, because we are in dire need of preschool services for our working families.
CHAIR CARROLL: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, that, this will be a real added contribution to the
community. So, I'm happy to support it.
CHAIR CARROLL: And you can sit down, sir. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I had a question of Corporation Counsel, and it was along the
lines of the question that she was asking of Clayton. And because so many times, you
know, people that come before us are faced with situations where if we can make a broad
interpretation, or if we can look at a situation where it, it lessens the burden, but doesn't
go beyond the, the breath, I guess, of our authority. Is there, is there anyway that you
could, you know, perhaps look at the ordinance and see is Ms. Anderson correct in her
interpretation, or would it be something that within our view could be done, or is it going
to go right back to Planning, and it's in their kuleana?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida. Oh, Mr.--
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I asked Mr. Moto.
CHAIR CARROLL: --oh, Mr. Moto. I'm sorry, Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Brian Moto, Corporation Counsel. Ms. Suyama is
not here, but having read the Report that she drafted for this Committee and the Maui
Planning Commission, I think I can guess or surmise how she, which, how she analyzed
this project. And it's really the initial comment to all development projects, because one
of the first tasks faced with anyone trying to determine what kind of land use entitlements
are associated with a particular project is to characterize the use. Sometimes this is very
easy. There's no question what it is. Sometimes it can be a little bit difficult especially if
the uses are mixed.
In this particular case, and I think for a good reason, when Colleen Suyama and the
Planning Department looked at this they probably characterized it from the beginning as
a church use. When you look at the site plan, for example, it's called a site development
plan, which is one of the larger sheets of paper in your binder. You'll see that while a
preschool is certainly going to be part of this use, it's only going to be a part. And, in
fact, they have the preschool designated as being really part, one wing of a larger
building. The building for the record is going to include a hall, administration facilities, a
lobby and a worship sanctuary.
And typically in these kinds of analyses, Planning tries to avoid, and we, and we the
lawyers try to discourage the segmenting of uses especially if the, the better approach is
to look at the thing in, in its entirety. And say, okay, you know, we, really even though it
may have multiple uses what's the best overall characterization of this use for land use
purposes?
Now, the analysis might be, might have been different had this project been, for example,
larger where you had a very distinct school off on one part of the project and a church on
another part of the site. In that case, perhaps Planning would have considered or, and
recommended split zoning, a split designation, but that, those are not the facts that we
face here. Instead, it's a fairly modest size facility overall. The uses are all planned to
occur within the same, basically the same connected structure.
Title 19 does not have a definition of church, by the way, curiously enough, but what you
do find when you go to Chapter 1908, under the list of special uses in the residential
district there are, the ordinance is very clear in saying churches together with accessory
buildings are declared special uses.
And so, with that kind of specificity I, I think that Ms. Suyama and the Planning
Department probably felt that they had no choice but to characterize it as such.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I, I really appreciate that, Mr. Moto, because
sometimes it's very frustrating, I guess for the applicants to, to understand why, you
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know, something is interpreted a particular way. So, I thank you very much, Mr. Chair,
and I'm happy to support this proposal as well.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion on
the floor, signify by saying "aye".
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried unanimously.
VOTE:

AYES:

Johnson,
Councilmembers
Anderson,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Kane,

Molina,

District

Boundary

Councilmembers Hokama, Mateo, and Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST
Amendment bill.

READING

of

CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair will now entertain a motion, excuse me, to pass the revised
proposed bill transmitted by the Department of Corporation Counsel by correspondence
dated October 10th , 2005, entitled: a bill for an ordinance to Change Zoning from
Agricultural District to OS dash 2 Open Space District and A dash 1 Apartment District
for property situated at Kihei, Maui, Hawaii, and to file the communication.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla and seconded by Mr. Molina.
Discussion? Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair, I don't have any more discussion.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor of the
motion, please signify by saying "aye".
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES:

Johnson,
Councilmembers
Anderson,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Kane,

Molina,

Councilmembers Hokama, Mateo, and Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised Change in Zoning
bill and FILING of communication.

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. And thank you to the Applicant for being with us today.
Members, moving right along, and we do have some time constraints, because we're
going lose Mr. Molina at about four o'clock and some other Members who have other
obligations.
So, we will be taking a break at two 0' clock, but, I mean, excuse me, at three 0' clock. In
an hour and a half, but we're going to move on and see how fast we can, how far we can
go with that we have. Our next Land Use Item is Land Use 19, Change in Zoning.

ITEM NO. 19:

CHANGE IN ZONING FOR SHIZUKO SUEHIRO TRUST (LAHAINA)
(C.c. No. 05-266)

CHAIR CARROLL: And the description of this project--we are in receipt of the following:
County Communication No. 05-226 [sic] from the Planning Director transmitting,
transmitting a request from Lee Ohigashi on behalf of Shizuko Suehiro Trust for a
Change in Zoning from R-2 Residential District to B-2 Community Business District for
a Development containing a retail store, a single-family residence and storage shed on
approximately 13.861 square feet located at 1217 Front Street, Lahaina, Maui.
Correspondence dated October 18 t \ 2005, to the Department of the Corporation Counsel,
transmitting a revised proposed bill: a bill for an ordinance to Change Zoning from R-2
Residential District to B-2 Community Business District for property situated in Lahaina,
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Maui, Hawaii. And the purpose of the revised proposed bill is to grant the Change in
Zoning request. I'll now ask for the Applicant to give a five-minute presentation.
MR. OHIGASHI: Hello, my name is Lee Ohigashi. I'm the attorney representing the
Suehiro Trust. Present today is one of the members of the trust Kimiko Mato; and a
daughter of the, another member of the trust, Denice Keliikoa. So, they're here in the
audience, but they don't plan to make a presentation at this time or testify at this time.
Essentially, this is a property that's been in the Suehiro family, I believe in the, since the
1920s. And if you all know Lahaina, you know that there was a Suehiro Store over there.
And, I guess it existed, and it existed in, in ' 61, I think, when the original zoning of the
property took place, which the comprehensive zoning of, I guess the Island of Maui
created an R-2 designation.
This story starts, I guess in 1991, when the County did a flood control project. And in
that flood control project the County passed the, the County Council passed a resolution
essentially authorizing the taking, authorizing the taking of the front portion of the
property in exchange and offered for sale to the various members, various owners of that,
of that area, the back portions of the property. And they, in that, in that resolution they
listed the amounts that each one would pay for their, their, their part of that.
I guess Suehiro Store discontinued and was replaced by Food Pantry over there. After
Food Pantry was, they wanted to, in I think 1997, '96 or '97 wanted to rent to Snorkel
Bob's. Snorkel Bob's couldn't go in there, because it wasn't, it wasn't a Food Pantry
which is similar to Suehiro store, retail kind of store, could continue as a non-conforming
use. Except Snorkel Bob, which was not a retail store, which was more commercial use
they had to get a variance.
So, in 1997, they got a variance for their portion, this is the back portion that hadn't been
transferred at that time. The 1997 variance stated that you guys got to get a change of
zoning in five years. Okay, but the back property was never transferred. Finally, after
five years in 19 ... , in 2002, in April the back property was finally transferred after a
14-year wait, I guess, and the payments were made. So, now we have the entire parcel
going back to front over there.
In the meantime, the variance was continued and, twice, to give us an opportunity to file
for the, for the zoning change today. And that's what we're here essentially for. And I
thought that that history was kind of important, because it, it shows that, the history of, it,
it shows essentially the history of how this thing came to, to, to this point of view. And
the essential reason why we're asking for the zoning change is, is that it's in the variance
and it will run out. We can't, Snorkel Bob can't use it too, and we can't honor our lease
if we don't have it.
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So, I'm sure that the Committee has some questions. I've put up here essentially a
schematic drawing, or a, a drawing of the, of the parcel, and if, and will be open for
questions if you have any with regard to this matter.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. I'd like now to call on the Department. Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, we have a short video if the
Committee wants to see that, or we have pictures supplied by the Applicant of the
property and surrounding properties ... (change tape, end side 1B) . ..
The Planning, Maui Planning Commission had a public hearing on this matter on
September 28 th , 2004. At the public hearing one person testified who was a member of
the neighboring church voicing concerns if liquor was sold on the property. After due
deliberation the Commission recommended approval of the zoning request with no
conditions.
The Department also submitted their responses to a request from the Committee Chair, by
letters dated October 20th , 2005 and October 26th , 2005. Relative to compliance with the
variance conditions the Department finds that the only condition outstanding is that four
parallel parking spaces be provided fronting the commercial operation. Current parking
stalls are angle parking stalls. And that concludes our Report.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Yoshida.
MR. OHIGASHI: Mr. Chair, may I make a short, Mr. Chair, if I may make a short statement
with regard ...
CHAIR CARROLL: No.
MR.OHIGASHI: Oh, okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: We're now going to open public testimony. Public testimony is now open.
Anybody wishing to testify on this agenda item, please corne forward. Hearing none,
public testimony, ifthere's no objection, we will close public testimony.
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Public testimony is now closed. I'm now going to open up the
floor. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You know, I know this area
very well, and it's always had perpendicular parking. Can you tell me why you're now
requiring them to do parallel parking?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
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MR. YOSHIDA: I believe at the time that the Board of Variances was reviewing the project
there was concern that a portion of the cars encroached on the roadway, because the stalls
are perpendicular. So, one of the conditions of the variance was for parallel parking
stalls.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But that's the variance. Now, he's coming for zoning, so
it's our kuleana. And I'm looking at this, and I'm going to pass it on down to the other
Members. You know, my, my concern about this is that in order to parallel park you've
got to stop on the highway to angle your car into a parallel space. And if any of you,
well, you know what that does to back-up traffic.
And so, it doesn't look to me like the cars are sticking out in the roadway at all, but I'm
going to pass this on down to everybody else so they can see it. Would you like to
address that, Mr. Ohigashi?
MR. OHIGASHI: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MR. OHIGASHI: The, the reason, the reason why it was parallel parking is that a part of the
flood control project took away some of our, our, our frontage, and that's why, actually
the, the angled parking would not, is not going into the roadway itself, but it might, it's
intruding into the right-of-way, I think. That's the, that's the reason.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You mean when they back out?
MR. OHIGASHI: Right. Right. And so, so even when they park it may be in, it may be in the
right-of-way that we gave up as part of the flood control project. You, you understand?
The funding part was part of our, part of the thing was giving up part of the thing and,
and that's why part of, if it was angled parking the, the back-end of the car would be
sticking within the right-of-way. And I think that that's the reason why they had it
parallel, but my client's complied with that.
They, they complied with that I believe in the variance time. It appears that the lessee
changed it to angle parking, and in 2004 when we got the Planning Commission they
informed us it was, it was angle parking, and it should be parallel parking. So, my clients
went out there and hired somebody to do it, and they went back to parallel parking.
In the meantime, it appeared that the tenants returned the angle parking, but as I speak to
my clients today we've instructed them that, to comply with the variance to make sure
that we're not in trouble. That to restripe it, and as of today, I know it's today, and I, I
believe, you know, we took pictures of it if you want to see it, but it's back to parallel
parking again.
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So, it's, my clients have been trying to keep, to follow the Board of Variance regulation,
but it seems that the tenants have, and I'm not sure if they actually knew from the Board,
Board of Variance and Appeals ruling, but it was, it's always been returned back.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What's the difference between the parallel parking and the
angle parking as far as the number of spaces that are provided?
MR.OHIGASHI: I think, I think you can get probably two more in angle parking.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In the angle parking.
MR. OHIGASHI: And it doesn't intrude in part of the, the, in the parallel parking there's a
shack that, that is in the back on the side, and sometimes people park, sometimes people
park in that shack area or-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In the yard.
MR. OHIGASHI: --in the garage kind of shack area. And it, it, it just comes, that, but that is, is
very little, so it, but the parallel parking sometimes intrude in that. But that's essentially
our story that we've been trying to comply, but it's not been coming out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I don't think we're going to scold you for not .. {laughter} .
. .not following the Board of Variance. I'd like to see it be angle if anybody can, is there
anything from the Police Department in here regarding that, the parking? Mr. Yoshida,
do you ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida, do you know of anything regarding the parking from the
Police Department?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean the more parking we can get the better for
everybody concerned. I don't see any ...
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes, Exhibit 8, is the Police Department's comments.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And do they say anything about, Exhibit 8, I mean I think
they've been using angle parking there pretty consistently. I angle parked there myself
about a year ago to, to get snorkeling stuff for visiting family ... (pause) . .. it says here
Mr. Ohigashi related that the only change that may take place in the immediate future
resulting from this Application is the reconfiguration to the existing parking area, which
mean, which would mean striping parking stalls or eliminating the existing parking area.
You want to clarify that?
MR. OHIGASHI: One of the reasons why the back lot was acquired was for the purposes of
making sure that in the future that there is parking available. And at the time I made that
statement I, I said that to be fair the, what we can foresee is maybe utilizing some of the
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back portions for parking. And, you know, but that, this was in the SMA area that would
probably be requiring an SMA permit. That's the only thing I was thinking of that may
alleviate the problems in the front, if there are problems in the front.
And I think, I was speaking more towards the fact that some people were using the
opposite side of the road for parking, the mauka side of the road.
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, that, that's what your problem is.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Mr. Yoshida has an answer for us. Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes, again under Exhibit 6, the, the memo from the Department of Public
Works and Environmental Management, there is that item number three that talks about
the parallel parking stalls and that they favor parallel parking stalls .
. . . (Silence). ..

CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson, do you have anything further?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean, as long as they can expand to the back for more
parking, then I guess they're okay if they have to go parallel.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Johnson, followed by Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, because I have traveled that area I have never experienced
any difficulty or any accidents. I've not seen anything. Perhaps our Police Department
has, but it's worked fine. And so, our biggest problem, Mr. Chair, is that the County,
because we've not put any sidewalks. If the sidewalks were on the other side, actually,
you know, the people when they park on the opposite side of the street then, on the
mauka side that's where they're parking sometimes, you know, if they have to. And if
we do put in sidewalks then that's going to conflict.
So, I, I'm a little concerned in the back area, because I know that some of the people in
that boatyard area they like, they are also very cramped in that whole area, and there's
times when they don't have enough room to actually accommodate some of the activities
for the boating community. And I know that the family has been very gracious in, you
know, allowing those kinds ofthings, activities to take place on their property, too.
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So, you know, contrary and with all respect to Public Works, I, I don't, I say if it's not
broken, you know, then don't bother to correct it. Leave it at the parallel parking spots
until such time. And we could put language in there that it could be this way until such
time, leave it angled parking, and then at some later time, you know, in, in the future then
go ahead and, you know, make any accommodations if we need that right-of-way for
sidewalks or anything else, but personally I, I don't see any problem with the way that
it's operating currently. And it will take some maneuvering sometimes to get parallel
parking, because people then will be nosing out into the area. So, I don't know, that's
just my take. I'm totally in favor ofthe angled parking.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I guess comment and a response
from the Planning Department, from Mr. Yoshida. As I was reading the letter from
Mr. Foley, the October 20 th letter, I guess the number two right below number one, see
that paragraph, it mentions in there the B-2 community business zoning does not allow
for the single-family use, which is the request here. And it states, it is the Department's
understanding that the single-family use will still continue on the property. The
Department is researching when the single-family reo .. , residence was constructed.
So, I, I guess the question for me is are we still creating a, a legal non-conforming
situation, and do we currently have any type of zoning designation that would legally
permit all three existing uses that are going on now? Because I know the, the, the, B-2
recommendation from the Board of Variances, I mean it's coming from them, but I don't
know, the way I'm reading it now from the Planning Department, Planning Director's
response it seems like he's sort of, you know, has concerns.
It seems to me, at least on the surface, it seems to sort of conflict with what BV A wants,
and then what the Planning, the Planning Director is recommending. So, if I could a
comment from Mr. Yoshida.

CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Mr. Chairman, Councilmember Molina, I believe in our October 26 response
under item 1, we did state that the single-family residence and the store were constructed
in 1951 according to tax office records.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. YOSHIDA: That, that's true that if the property were zoned B-2 the single-family use
would not, would become a nonconforming use in the B-2 District.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So then what happens if it's considered non-conforming?
Then will it still be permissible then? I mean even though it's looked at in the eyes of, I
guess, zoning considered as nonconforming.
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MR. YOSHIDA: Well, it would still be allowed to continue.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, they would still continue. Okay, and currently we don't
have any type of zoning designation for the types of, I guess all three types of uses that
are currently going on? Mr., Mr. Chairman, I can wait for a response in writing if need
be. I know we're sort of pressed for time, and I want to keep my questions brief in
respect for your recommendation, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, I can wait for a response in writing. It's no, no problem.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. And the Chair will transmit your request in writing to the
Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and then I have a couple more questions, but I'll keep it
brief, and-CHAIR CARROLL: No. No. Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --I won't make long comments, yeah. The question is for
Public Works. With regards to the, I guess recommendation for the restriping of parking
stalls and the frontage of the Alamihi Place, and the paving of a driveway. Pretty much
could I get comment on that. Have these matters already been pretty much settled with
regards to the paving of the driveway as well?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If, if you would give me a rational, I guess for, for that, with
regards to those items or recommendations I should say.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Okay. The, the comment regarding the driveway for the residential
structure we're looking for it to be paved as it ties into the, the adjacent County street.
Mainly, the reason we want it paved is because of the tracking of dirt and material and
trying to keep it, keep the County's facility clean in ... , instead of tracking the material
onto the County's facility. And regarding the frontage, keeping the frontage clean also of
litter, because if, if they don't do it then it becomes a nuisance, and then the County ends
up funding, paying for, for the clean-up of that area.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and for the paving of the driveway that will be incurred
by the Applicant?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and one last question with regards to the BV A. If other
BVA conditions have not been met has the Applicant been provided extensions to
address these conditions, for whatever conditions that haven't been met?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, I can't say that I'm familiar, I worked on this prior to this day.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. MOTO: But just from the documents I have in front of me if this change in zoning goes
through it seems to me that the landowner would no longer need the variance from the
BV A. And so, it would become really moot at the ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay.
MR. MOTO: One thing I would also say, Mr. Chairman, is that the form of the bill that was
recommended by the Maui, Maui Planning Commission is, came with no conditions. So,
it's a clean bill. There's no, you won't see a unilateral agreement or set of conditions
requiring, with addressing parking, for example, or anything else. It's just a straight
change of zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I think this is a question for Mr. Moto.
While the Public Works Department would like to see the driveway paved, as this is a
non-conforming use that's been existing for-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Eighty years.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How many?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Eighty years.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Eighty years? I think it's a little late to come in and ask
them to pave the road; don't you? I mean what, where do we have the authority to do
that? I could see if they come in to upgrade the situation, maybe put a parking lot in the
back, and then you're going to have a lot of vehicular traffic. Then you'd want them to
pave the roadway, but I'd like to have some kind oflegal citation for that request.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Moto, are you prepared, or is anyone prepared to answer that at this
time?
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MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, these kinds of requirements or exemptions that are proposed by
agencies like the Department of Public Works are usually achieved by incorporating them
as a condition to one permit, or one approval or another. Because otherwise the
Department of Public Works would have no way of achieving that goal, because they
don't have a, they wouldn't have a mechanism to, to, to force the issue.
From what I can see in front of me all that's really on today's agenda is the change in
zoning. It has no conditions attached to it. So, unless you put that condition in there it
looks like Public Works is going to be out of luck, because, or they're going to have to
find some other mechanism to try to enforce it, but as far as I can see we're not here,
there's no subdivision that's planned with this, or. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There's no, there's no County Code requirement that they
could enforce saying, you know, you need to do this because it's in the Code?
CHAIR CARROLL: I think Mr. Miyamoto could answer that. Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Regarding the driveway, I guess at this point there isn't anything that would
trigger it unless they go ahead and decide that they're going to turn it into a parking lot
like they had mentioned. I guess when that, that trigger comes in, I, I guess he mentioned
something about an SMA also being required, and then at that point then we can go
ahead, it will probably trigger the, the paving of the driveway.
And regarding the frontage clean-up, I mean that's, that's something we can, that there
are ordinances for community beautification and things of, the other codes of that nature
that we can enforce to have them clean it up.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then what about the parking? Is there anything in the
Code that says you can enforce the, the parallel parking?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Well, it's not so much, I guess the, the reason that parallel parking is stated
over the, the diagonal parking, if you look at what, the comment, it's primarily because
the, the parking infringes upon the County's right-of-way. It has nothing to do with the
type of parking or anything. It's more the infringement within the County right-of-way.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I, I know, but let's define right-of-way. That's not
the roadway. That's not where cars are traveling.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's just the easement beyond the roadway. So, I mean ...
MR. MIYAMOTO: It's not an easement. It's the actual property line for the County's, for the
roadway improvements that we're talking about.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The County right-of-way is...
MR. MIYAMOTO: Beyond the edge ofthe pavement, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Beyond the edge of the pavement. So, that's used for
parking all over the County?
MR. MIYAMOTO: And it's permissible. And, I think if I'm not mistaken, the County Code
says, I guess, within residential areas between the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m.,
overnight parking is not permitted. Then it becomes an enforcement issue on, to enforce
that part.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, well, I don't think they snorkel between 2:00 a.m.
and 6. So, I think they're probably safe. Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
recommendation?

Any further discussion before the Chair gives his

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Clayton has ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Planning.
MR. YOSHIDA: Mr., Mr. Chair, I guess getting back to Councilmember Molina's question. I
guess in the B-1 District one single-family dwelling per lot would be permitted if you
take out, provided that there's at least 6,000 square feet for the dwelling after you take
out the business parking and other accessory areas for the business. There are properties
nearby that are zoned B-2 such as parcel six, which is the Uehara property.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. The Chair will entertain a motion to pass the revised proposed
bill entitled: a bill for an ordinance to Change Zoning from R-2 Residential District to B2 Community Business District for property situated at Lahaina, Maui, Hawaii, and to file
the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second .
. . . (Laughter) . ..
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CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Ms. Anderson and seconded by-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ms. Johnson .
. . . (Laughter) . ..

CHAIR CARROLL: --Ms. Johnson. Thank you. Discussion? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think we've all said enough. I, I think that it's good to
get them off the variance rollercoaster, and get it zoned properly, and get it in consistency
with the Community Plan, and allow them to continue to operate it, and maybe down the
road expand the parking if need be, and I think they have a great tenant.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion before hearing, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'll be supporting it with the condition
that, no I'm just kidding, not with a condition .
. . . (laughter). ..

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: But it's an unofficial condition that because I see more than a
couple of dozen mangoes on the ground behind the commercial building that we have
permission, and I get first dibs, Members, from the trust person, people that we can go
pick mangoes during mango season in Lahaina. No, I'm just kidding, Chair, and forgive
me for-CHAIR CARROLL: That's a good idea though.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --but there is a couple of dozen mangoes on the ground, and I saw
that in the picture, so I had to make a comment. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion on
the floor, please signify by saying "aye".
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers
Anderson,
Johnson,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.
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ABSENT:
EXC.:

None.
Councilmembers Hokama, Mateo, and Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we're going to take a ten-minute recess, and I would ask you to
please be back here in ten-minutes, because we do have some time constraints, and that
should give us enough time to address the last item. We now stand in recess... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

3:01 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:12 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: ... (gavel) . .. This Land Use Committee meeting of November 2nd , 200S, is
now back in session. Members, we have one last item on our agenda. Land Use Item 24,
District Boundary Amendment and Change in Zoning for Lionel Santos Trust in Haiku.
ITEM NO. 24:

DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING
FOR LIONEL SANTOS TRUST (HAIKU) (C.c. No. 05-278)

CHAIR CARROLL: The Committee is in receipt of the following: County Communication
No. OS-278 from the Planning Director transmitting a request from Lionel Santos Trust
for District Boundary Amendment from Agricultural District to Rural District, and a
Change of Zoning from Interim District to RU-O.S Rural District to allow for a three lot
subdivision on S.284 acres ofland in Haiku, Maui.
Correspondence dated September lih, 200S, from the Department of Corporation
Counsel transmitting the following: a revised proposed bill entitled: a bill for an
ordinance to amend the State Land Use District Classification from Agricultural to Rural
for property situated at Haiku, Maui, Hawaii. The purpose of the revised proposed bill is
to amend the Community Plan as requested. A revised proposed bill entitled: a bill for
an Ordinance to Change Zoning from Interim District to RU-O.S Rural District
(Conditional Zoning) for property situated at Haiku, Maui, Hawaii. And the purpose of
the revised proposed bill is to grant the conditional change in zoning request.
We have the Applicant here; the Applicant's representative, Mr. lng, who will give a
five-minute presentation. And afterwards, the Department, Planning Department,
Mr. Yoshida will give a presentation from the Department. Okay.
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MR. ING: Thank you. Good afternoon, Chairman Carroll, Members of the Committee. I'm
Lawrence Ing representing the Applicant, Mr. Lionel Santos, who is also present sitting
in the first row today.
Briefly, our request is consistent with the Community Plan. We'll have no adverse
impacts, and will enable Mr. Santos to keep the property in his family. He has been able
to keep it for over 100 years. He's the third generation owner, and he hopes to at least
have it for another couple generations. We'll be happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, Mr. Yoshida is not present at the moment, so I'm
going to open the floor for questioning at this time, and when Mr. Yoshida comes down I
will have him do the Department's presentation.
So, I'll open, oh, excuse me, before we do that I'm now going to open public testimony.
Public testimony is now open. Is there anyone who wishes to testify on this Land Use
item? Hearing none, ifthere's no objection, we shall close public testimony.
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed. Members, the floor is now open for
questions. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I guess my question is
related to the fact that the Applicant is currently on the, I guess the waitlist for water.
Will, will this proposed change in zoning, will that have any impact on the Applicant's
status? Being that they're going to go for three parcels now will that have any impact, I
guess, you know, I know we don't have somebody from Water. I don't know if anybody
can answer that? No. It's not. ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Is the Planning, excuse me. All right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Or rather, you know, what, Mr. Chair, I'll maybe submit that
in writing at a later time. Have any proposals for the construction of the subdivided
parcels been received? I guess maybe if Mr., Mr. Miyamoto could respond to that.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Do you know of any proposals at this time?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, the Applicant had an, and old subdivision that expired in January
of 2004. So, as of this time, no, we're not aware of any proposal. And in looking at the
topography map that they provided it looks like there's two existing structures, and
they're creating this third parcel.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. And then one question for Mr. Moto. The
application mentions that the, the Applicant wants to conveyor gift the subdivided
parcels to family members. There's no problem with that being, I guess is it appropriate
to have that as a condition, as part of this approval?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Miyamoto.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, Mr. Moto, I'm sorry.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Moto.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I, I can wait for a response in writing.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, again, I apologize. I have not worked with this application prior to
this date, but typically because what's on today's agenda is a, the land use entitlements,
the Change in Zoning and the State District Boundary Amendment ... (change tape, end
side 2A) . .. of ownership don't appear, because in theory land use designations don't
depend upon the identity of the owner, but rather on the character and nature of the land
use and it's surrounding uses.
So, typically, you would not put those kinds of conditions in the zoning measure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. We have Mr. Clayton Yoshida with the Planning Department
with us now. Mr. Yoshida, would you give your presentation on this Application?
MR. YOSHIDA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, the Maui Planning
Commission held a public hearing on these matters on June 14th , 2005. Two persons
testified, one in support and one expressing concerns. Two letters expressing concerns
were received after the Department's Report was completed.
After due deliberation the Commission recommended approval subject to the one
condition of zoning. That in the event that historic sites are identified during construction
activities all work needs to cease in the immediate vicinity of the find. The find needs to
be protected from additional disturbances, and the State Historic Preservation Office
needs to be contacted immediately on Maui or on Oahu. The Applicant has provided
photographic analysis and we can distribute it.
CHAIR CARROLL: And, Mr. Molina, you had a question for Planning before, would you like
to repeat that?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, I think, that related more to water, I think, but I guess if
Mr. Yoshida could answer it. I think the, the Applicant was on the waiting list for water.
Would the change in zoning have any impact on the person's status on the list?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida. If you're not able to answer that question, Mr. Yoshida,
we'll ask the Water Department in writing.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, because he was on the waiting list, I think for a single
parcel, but now that he's going for, you know, three parcels to get the rezoning for that. I
was just curious if that would have any impact on that person's standing on the water list,
but since we have no one here from Water I can get that at a later time.
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes, I don't know the answer to the question.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. You know, while I have you here, it, it was mentioned
of concerns expressed. What were specifically, if you can recall what those concerns
were? I saw a portion of the minutes from, I guess, the Planning Commission meeting
from a Ms. Naylor. From reading that page it sounds like they left their concerns with
someone. So, I was wondering if you can recall what concerns they had, I guess
regarding this?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes, Mr. Chairman, Councilmember Molina, I believe it, their concerns
related more to the specifics of the project, of the proposed subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And what were those specifics? I mean, sorry to be pressing
you on this a little bit. I'm just curious. I just want to know exactly, is it more like the
people who had concerns, they needed more information, or there was something
specifically they didn't like, and what were those things that they had concerns about?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes, I believe that Mr. Au, Glenn Au had concerns about water.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Any further questions? Ms. Johnson, followed by
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know that in some situations we enter deferral agreements
for improvements as far as, you know, roadways or other things that are needed in a
particular subdivision, and I think, is that, once it goes more than three, Clayton? Is it
when we go over three, or is three the trigger?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Let's see. Councilmember, Mr. Chairman, Councilmember Johnson, I believe
it's four or more.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, it's four or more. And because they're using, I
guess the three lots will, you know, each have a dwelling on them, and then the larger
parcel would be developed later. At that point in time, is it, is it the intent that once it
goes over, you know, the amount, I guess he's only dividing it into three lots though; is
that correct?
MR. YOSHIDA: That's the, I believe that's the Applicant's proposal. Yes, three lots.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Because, oh, I see. Each of the houses will be on the
one acre lots and the three acre will be the vacant one. So, that's just the three. All right.
So then he won't have to worry about that at a later time unless he further, you know,
changes the property into creating more lots. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. You know, it, it's disturbing to me to
have members of the community go and testify at the Planning Commission, leave letters
of concern, and then not have them forwarded to us. I mean we are the ones who have
the option to put conditions in to address their concerns, and if we don't know what they
are. Ms. Naylor was one, and I'm not sure who the other one is. Mr. Yoshida says he
thinks it's Glenn Au, but this is not his project, so he, were you there at the, at the
meeting, Mr. Yoshida?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Mr. Chairman, Councilmember Anderson, I don't believe I was there-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. YOSHIDA: --at this, when this item was discussed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, I would request that we get those letters prior to first
reading on this should this pass out so that we have an option to address those concerns.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair will make sure that we have that correspondence available for
Members well before first reading.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate that. I'm confused,
because in the testimony from the Department to the Planning Commission they're
saying they're going from Interim to Rural One Acre, but then in the Report it says half
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acre. The property is zoned Interim. The request to change in zoning is from Interim to
Half-Acre Rural. So, which is it?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Mr. Chairman, Members, I mean, Councilmember Anderson, the Applicant is
applying for Rural Half-Acre.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Half-Acre?
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I can't find this in the Community Plan. My concern is
that, is this the first property that's going half acre from Ag, and, and how, where, how
much of the property in the surrounding property in the Community Plan is designated
Rural Half-Acre?
And the reason I'm concerned about this, Mr. Chairman, is because we did have a
situation several years ago where there was an area designated in the Community Plan for
Rural Half-Acre. The people in the neighborhood didn't know that it was designated
Rural Half-Acre until someone moved in and tried to change their zoning from Ag to
Rural Half-Acre. And there was a big huhu about it. I think you'll all remember, and we,
it was, and we ended up denying the Change in Zoning and redesignating the property
back to Ag.
So, I'd like to know where exactly? Maybe if somebody else has a question I can take
my Community Plan map to Mr. Yoshida, and he can find it on here for me, because I
can't find it. And in, in the meantime, do you know if this is, I heard reference in here to
spot zoning. Is this the first parcel to go rural in this area? Do you know that,
Mr. Yoshida?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes, Mr. Chairman, Councilmember Anderson, I believe that, well, there are
other rural residential uses surrounding this use according to our Staff Report on page six,
oh, the Planning Department's Report on page six. I don't believe that this is one of the
areas which have been designated for one acre rural.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, if this is five acres, and we're changing this to rural
half acre it's likely that there could be ten lots, and ten houses? It's my understanding
that, that he only wants to subdivide it into three lots; is that correct?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Yoshida.
MR. YOSHIDA: Mr. Chairman, Councilmember Anderson, as proposed by the Applicant, their
proposal is to subdivide the property into three lots for conveyance purposes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For, for what purposes?
MR. YOSHIDA: Conveyance purposes to other family members.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
further?

But they could then resubdivide those three lots even

MR. YOSHIDA: Well, that, that would be a possibility if they wanted to maXImIze the
development of the property, but their proposal is for a three lot subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And this would be either for Clayton or Corporation
Counsel. Because it's being proposed now that this is only going to be for three lots is
there any way that we could stipulate, because this is a change in zoning that it be for no
more than three lots, or limit the number of dwellings? Is there any stipulation that we
could place on this, or is this not possible given the zoning?
CHAIR CARROLL: Who would like to answer Ms. Johnson's question?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No one, I guess .
. . . (Laughter). ..

CHAIR CARROLL: You might have to repeat that question, Ms. Johnson? If we could have
everyone's attention?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I just wanted to double check to see if we stipulated
that there was a condition, because it's being presented before us that this would be three
lots, and, you know, we're granting it on that basis, can we give them the designation,
with the change in zoning can we actually do that legally and just stipulate that it only be
no more than three lots, and that it cannot, cannot be further subdivided?
CHAIR CARROLL: Who would like to answer that question? We'll give them a moment to
confer .
. . . (Silence). ..

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, do you want a brief recess, or do other Members
have questions?
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CHAIR CARROLL: The question is very straightforward. Can we put a condition on this
Application, Zoning Application to make sure this is not subdivided again? That is the
question. Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Yeah, please excuse me. Mr., Mr. Chairman during the, that period of silence
what I was trying to do was to review some of the law on subdivision. I'm told that, and
I don't know, I mean this is just information I was provided. This, this particular
property is the subject of a family subdivision proposal and, therefore, would be subject
to those provisions of Title 18 relating to family subdivisions, which has its own
limitations. I was trying to familiarize myself once again with those provisions.
CHAIR CARROLL: While Mr. Moto is doing that, Members, any other Members have anything
they would like to bring up at this time while Mr. Moto is researching? If not, we shall,
since this is our last application, and it is after three-thirty, I'm not going to call for a
recess unless Mr. Moto requests a five-minute recess. Would you like to request a fiveminute recess?
MR. MOTO: Yes, Mr. Chairman, that would be helpful.
CHAIR CARROLL: Five-minute recess. We will reconvene at three-forty... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

3:34 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:43 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: ... (gavel) . .. This Land Use Committee meeting of November 2nd, 2005, is
now back in session. Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me begin by clarifying something that I said prior
to the recess regarding family subdivisions. It is true that the, one of the purposes of
today's application from the landowner's perspective is to, as stated in the Report to
subdivide the property into three lots to gift or convey to family members. I've just
confirmed with the attorney for the Applicant that the subject property is not under the
family, "family subdivision" provisions of the, of the subdivision law, Title 18.
For those of you who are familiar with that provision there's a special process and
requirements for family, "family subdivisions," and under that provision the pro ... ,
subdivider is restricted in whom he can transfer the property to. However, this particular
application is not being processed that way. It's just being processed as a regular
subdivision. So, and I mention that, because it's somewhat related to the concerns
expressed earlier by Councilmember Molina about ownership restrictions and the like.
On the question of, of, to what ex ... , what mechanisms are there to restrict or monitor,
limit the capacity of the owners of this property, current owners or future owners to
further subdivide the property. The, I guess the short answer is that really it's very,
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there's very limited option. The, the zoning classifications we have in effect provide for
the minimum sizes for the lots. You know, so, if it's zoned RU-O.5 that means in theory
there's that potential to have as many lots as you can fit in, providing you meet the
minimum lot size.
Rather than imposing some, and usually limitations on further subdividability are not
incorporated as conditions. What one might consider, if you were inclined in that
direction, is to, to not zone the whole, I mean I'm not, you know, I'm not making this as a
recommendation, I'm just explaining the options.
But if one is faced with a parcel, and you're not comfortable with the future potential of
half acre lots then presumably what would you do is would you not rezone the whole
thing RU-O.5, but only those portions that will, that, that you and your, based upon the
facts in evidence before you think it's appropriate. And you would allow the remainder
to remain in, to remain in Interim, I guess, which by the way has its own issues.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I thank Brian for that clarification. I think one of
the, one of the problems I would have in, I guess, moving in that direction is that, you
know, the Applicant has stated his intention and, of course, it's really difficult, and it's
really expensive when you're looking at a family subdivision to come back time after
time. This is not being processed underneath a family subdivision, although the intended
or stated use is that of a family subdivision.
In visiting further about this my one concern would have been, okay, we're evaluating
this right now, the land use change based on looking at three residences going on these
three lots. One, one acre with a residence, another one acre with a residence, and then the
third having three or more, slightly over three acres and another residence.
So, what we're evaluating is based on what we're presented with today, the
representation. So, my concern was that if they go beyond what we're looking at what
would we have to do, or what would any entity other than us have to protect the public's
interest to evaluate on anything over the three lots? In other words, the impacts that
we're being shown justification are just based on the three. If we go beyond that what
protection is there, or is there some kind of a condition that could be added to evaluate
later on?
And I believe and Mr. Moto can correct me if I'm wrong, he stated that at the time when
the actual subdivision, I guess would come forward, where the TMKs were assigned, at
that point in time then I guess the impacts or whatever requirements were needed to
satisfy the granting of this subdivision, at that point in time those evaluations would be
made.

- 43 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

November 2, 2005

So, that's the only things that I was concerned about. So, I mean he can correct me ifI'm
wrong, but that's my understanding.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson, and Mr. Moto indicated that that is correct.
Members, any further discussion on this application? Well, you know what, I want
Mr. Moto now to clarify the description in LU-24. There was an error made by my Staff,
and I apologize, and Mr. Moto will address that now.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, just for the record I'll note that on your, on today's agenda under
Land Use 24 agenda item, there was an error in the, in one sentence of the agenda
description. It states in paragraph 2A that the purpose of one of the bills is to: amend the
Community Plan as requested. And, of course, that's not correct. The, the purpose of
that, that bill that's referenced in the sentence is actually to achieve a District Boundary
Amendment.
Now, even though that error was made when you look at all the other statements in the
agenda description they're all correct, and they all clearly refer to a District Boundary
Amendment for the Lionel Santos trust in Haiku, and it's actually repeated several times
in that same agenda item.
So, after speaking with Staff and, of course, this is, this will be up to the Committee to
decide, but my sense is that a, a person, a member of the public reading this would,
despite the error, have been informed accurately of the real substantive measure that's
before this Committee.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Moto. Any further discussion on this application before
the Chair give his recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Recommendation.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair will entertain a motion to pass the proposed bill entitled: a bill
for an ordinance to amend the State, excuse me, State Land Use District Classification
from Agricultural to Rural for property situated at Haiku, Maui, Hawaii.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Molina. Discussion?
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I defer to the Members.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I'm happy to support
his request. As you heard from Mr. Santos's representative, Mr. lng, he comes from a
generation of fam ... , of families that lived in the Haiku area for many, many years, and I
appreciate Mr. Santos's efforts to provide for younger generations of his family to stay
here in Maui County. So, I will be more than happy to support this. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm just going to say ditto to what Mike said.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. All those in favor of the motion on the floor, please signify by
saying "aye".
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers
Anderson,
Johnson,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Kane,

Molina,

Councilmembers Hokama, Mateo, and Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised District Boundary
Amendment bill.

CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair will now entertain a motion to pass the revised proposed bill
entitled: a bill for an ordinance to Change Zoning from Interim District to RU dash 0.5
Rural District Conditional Zoning for property situated at Haiku, Maui, Hawaii, and to
file the Communication.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Molina. Discussion?
Mr. Pontanilla.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Defer to my fellow colleague from Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I think I've said enough already.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, wasn't there a condition regarding cultural?
I'm sorry, I just closed my book. Didn't the Planning Commission recommend one
condition?
UNIDENTIFIED COUNCILMEMBER: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry could you speak a little bit more?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Didn't the Planning Commission recommend one
condition that in the event that historic sites are identified during construction activities
all work needs to cease in the immediate vicinity, and so on, or are we just going to
ignore that condition?
CHAIR CARROLL: So, is that a motion to amend?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, that is a motion to amend.
respect the, the conditions that they passed to us.

I think we need to

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It has been moved by Ms. Anderson and seconded by Ms. Johnson.
Discussion? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I think we need to respect the conditions that they passed
to us.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion on the amendment to the motion on the
floor, to the main motion, excuse me? Hearing none, all those in favor of the amendment
to the main motion, signify by saying "aye".
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers
Anderson,
Johnson,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.
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ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Hokama, Mateo, and Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further before we take our vote? Hearing none, all
those in favor of the amended motion, signify by saying "aye".
MS. NAKATA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oppo ...
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, I'm sorry, could I please get clarification on the amendment that's
been proposed?
CHAIR CARROLL: Could you please repeat the amendment for the Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If you look in the Report from the Committee, I mean from
the Planning Commission or the Planning Director, the recommended conditions of the
Maui Planning Commission to the Maui County Council are as follows. It's on page two
of the Report. One, that in the event that historic sites are identified during construction
activities all work needs to cease in the immediate vicinity of the find. The find needs to
be protected from additional disturbances, and the State Historic Preservation Office
needs to be contacted immediately on Maui or on Oahu.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the Staff would note that that condition is attached as Exhibit "B" to
the Change in Zoning bill currently.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh. Well, good. I didn't, I didn't hear you mention it,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It is already attached. Is there any reason for us to go back and, even
though it is attached, is there any reason for us to withdraw that motion?
MS. NAKATA: Staff was unclear whether there is a proposed revision to the language of the
condition, but it appears that the reading is identical to what's currently in the bill.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll withdraw my amendment, then.
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CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection, Ms. Anderson has agreed to withdraw the
amendment. Is there any objection?
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. And thank you, Ms. Nakata. All right. We're back to the
main motion on the floor. All those in favor, please signify by saying "aye".
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried.
AYES:

Councilmembers
Anderson,
Johnson,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

VOTE:

EXC.:

Kane,

Molina,

Councilmembers Hokama, Mateo, and Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised Change in Zoning
bill, RECORDATION of unilateral agreement, and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, thank you very much. And the members of the audience in
television land out there that has been with us today, thank you for having us. And this
meeting, Land Use meeting of November 2nd , stands adjourned ... (gavel) . ..
ADJOURN:

3:56 p.m.

APPROVED:

ROBERT CARROLL,
Land Use Committee
Transcribed by: Jessica Cahill
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